
FAYETTE COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Tuesday, September 22, 2020 – 7:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 
Order of Business 

1. CALL TO ORDER Chairman 

2. ROLL CALL County Clerk 

3. INVOCATION Commissioner Charles Dacus 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5. COMMENTS ON NON - AGENDA ITEMS (10 MINUTE MAXIMUM)

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
6.1 August 25, 2020 (Pg 3) 

7. RESOLUTIONS OF MEMORIALS, SYMPATHY, AND COMMENDATIONS

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS
8.1 Solar within 1 mile of 161KV TVA right of way (Pg 11) 
8.2 Augment Various Elements in the Regulations of Solar Power Generation in RPED (Pg 12) 
8.3 Increase Setbacks from Solar Panels to Dwellings and Minor County Roads (Pg 16) 
8.4 Rezoning B1 to B3 – Harris (Pg 18) 

9. ELECTIONS, APPOINTMENTS, AND CONFIRMATIONS
9.1 Election of Notaries Public (Pg 29) 

9.2 Adoption of Rules and Procedures (Pg 30) 
9.3 Election of Chairman

9.3.1 Resolution Setting Salary of Chairman 
9.4 Election of Chairman Pro Tempore 

9.4.1 Resolution Setting Salary of Chairman Pro Tempore 
9.5 Election of Committees (Pg 41) 
9.6 Planning Commission Members – Paul Lewis, & Don Fletcher 
9.7 Industrial Development Board Members – Steve Crafton, & Vip Lewis 
9.8 Library Board Members – Ronald Turner, & Melissa Ferge (Pg 42) 
9.9 Property Assessor Bonds (Pg 43) 
9.10 Public Works Board Bonds (Pg 46) 

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
10.1 Financial Reports

Page 1



10.2 Reports of Departments and Agencies 
10.2.1 County Mayor’s Office Rhea Taylor 
10.2.2 Sheriff’s Department Sheriff Riles  
10.2.3 Board of Education  Dr. Smith 
10.2.4 Juvenile Court Melissa Douglass 
10.2.5 Board of Public Works Wayne Dowdy 
10.2.6 Trustee Barbra Parker 
10.2.7 Planning & Development John Pitner 

 
10.3 Reports of Standing Committees  

10.3.1 Development Committee 
10.3.1.1 Minutes – September 14, 2020 (Pg 58) 

 
10.3.2 Health and Welfare Committee 

10.3.2.1 Minutes – September 14, 2020 (Pg 61) 
 

10.3.3 Personnel Committee 
10.3.3.1 Minutes – September 14, 2020 (Pg 62) 
10.3.3.2 Sheriff’s Employee Handbook Update – Information Only (Pg 63) 

 
10.3.4 Education Committee  

10.3.4.1 Minutes – September 15, 2020 (Pg 83) 
 

10.3.5 Criminal Justice and Public Safety Committee 
10.3.5.1 Minutes – September 15, 2020 (Pg 84) 

 
10.3.6 Budget Committee 

10.3.6.1 Minutes – September 15, 2020 (Pg 85) 
10.3.6.2 Employee Health Insurance  
10.3.6.3 Building Architect Contract – Fleming Architects (Pg 87) 
10.3.6.4 Mental Health Contract (Pg 97) 
10.3.6.5 CJC Master Plan – Professional Services Contract – A2H (Pg 109) 
10.3.6.6 Budget Amendment – 101 – County Clerk Reserve Request (Pg 116) 
10.3.6.7 Budget Amendment – 101 – Sheriff’s Office Salary Line Adjustment (Pg 117) 
10.3.6.8 Budget Amendment – 171 – Ambulance Purchase (Wreck Replacement) (Pg 119) 
 

10.4 Reports of Special Committees  
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

11.1 Budget Amendment – 101 – Fire Operations Chief Position (Pg 120) 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
13. INFORMATION ONLY 

13.1 Sales Tax Letter (Pg 124) 
13.2 Sales Tax Revenue by Month (Pg 125) 
13.3 Adequate Facilities Tax Report (Pg 127) 
13.4 Building Permit Report  (Pg 128) 

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
2020-21 

RULES 
 
 
Rule 1: Convening the County Legislative Body 

 
The County Legislative Body shall conduct it regular meetings at the 
Bill G. Kelley Justice Complex on the fourth Tuesday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. Should any regular meeting fall on a legal holiday, or 
if an emergency shall arise, the County Legislative Body shall meet 
on such other date as shall be selected by the Chairman. 

 
Rule 2: Quorum 

 

A quorum for the transaction of business shall be a majority of the 
duly qualified and acting members of the County Legislative Body and 
where vacancy or vacancies exist in the County Legislative the same 
shall not be included in determining the membership of such County 
Legislative Body. 

 
Rule 3: Order of Business 

 

1. Call to order by the Presiding Officer 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Comments on non-agenda items (10 minute maximum) 
6. Reading and approval of minutes of previous meeting 
7. Resolutions of memorial, sympathy and commendations 
8. Public hearings 
9. Elections, Appointment and Confirmations 
10. Unfinished Business 

a. Financial reports 
b. Reports of Departments and Agencies 
c. Report of Standing Committees and action thereon 
d. Report of Special Committees and action thereon 
e. Other unfinished business 

11. New Business 
12. Announcements and statements by members, officials and 

the public 
13. Adjournment 

Page 30



Rule 4: General 
 

Rule 4A: Who May Address the County Legislative Body 
 

It is a Commissioner’s right to address the Chairman and the County 
Legislative Body at any appropriate time after proper recognition by 
the Chairman, in which recognition will not be arbitrarily denied. 
Elected and appointed county official with expertise or information 
necessary for clarification of a matter under consideration by the 
County Legislative Body may address the County Legislative Body at 
any appropriate time after proper recognition by the Chair, which 
recognition will not be arbitrarily denied.  Any Commissioner can, 
after being recognized by the Chair, relinquish his time on the 
floor to a citizen who has knowledge or expertise concerning the 
topic being debated. Citizens and their representatives are 
encouraged to speak for or against any agenda item under 
consideration and on any non-agenda item following the Pledge of 
Allegiance. Statements of citizens shall be limited to three (3) 
minutes per speaker and fifteen (15) minutes total for those 
speaking in favor and fifteen (15) minutes for those speaking in 
opposition to an item under consideration. These specified time 
limits may be extended by majority vote of the County Legislative 
Body. 

 
Rule 4B: Gaining the Floor 

 
In all cases, the member who shall first raise his hand and address 
the Chairman shall be entitled to speak first. When two or more 
members shall raise their hands and address the Chairman at the same 
time, the Chairman shall name the members who shall speak first 
followed by the other Member. 

 
Rule 4C: Speaking 

 

When any members wishes to speak in debate, discussion, or deliver 
any address on any matter whatsoever to the County Legislative Body, 
they shall respectfully address the Chairman and shall, after being 
recognized by the Chairman proceed with the remarks, confining such 
remarks strictly to the question under debate and avoiding all 
personalities. 

 
Rule 4D: Consent to Yield 

 

While a person is speaking, the speaker shall not be interrupted, 
except for a question. If the speaker declines to yield, the 
speaker shall not be interrupted, but shall yield to question at the 
end of the presentation. 

 
Rule 4E: Points of Order 

 

If any member, speaking or otherwise, transgresses the Rules of the 
County Legislative Body, the Chairman shall, or any member may, call 
him into order, in which case the member so-called to order shall 
immediately cease speaking at which time the point of order shall be 
at once decided by the Chairman, subject to an appeal to the County 
Legislative Body. After the decision is rendered, the member having 
the floor can proceed, subject to the decision made. 

Page 31



 
Rule 4F: Appeal on Ruling 

 

Any member may appeal to the County Legislative Body any ruling of 
the Chairman, and a majority vote of the members present shall 
decide the appeal. 

 
Rule 4G: Refusal to be in Order 

 

If any person, member or otherwise, refuses to remain orderly, the 
Chairman shall have the right to call upon the Sheriff, Deputy 
Sheriff, or Officer in waiting upon the County Legislative Body to 
seat such person, and if such person refuses to be seated, or come 
to order, the Chairman shall have the right to declare such person 
in contempt and to order his removal from the courtroom. This 
person may return to the courtroom only on the approval of a 
majority of the members present. 

 
Rule 4H: Introduction of a Resolution (Motion) 

 
Any proposed resolution may be introduced by any member of the 
County Legislative Body. 

 
Rule 4I: Committee Referrals 

 
Any member wishing to introduce a measure which would require 
consideration or study shall refer the matter to the Chairman and he 
shall refer it to the appropriate committee without delay. 

 
Rule 5 Motions and Resolutions 

 

Rule 5A: Introduction and Debate 
 

Motions may be made only by Commissioners. No motion shall be 
debated until the same is seconded and stated by the Chairman. 

 
Rule 5B: Motions in Writing 

 

When a motion shall be made and seconded, it shall be reduced to 
writing by the proponent or the Clerk and read by the Chairman prior 
to any debate or vote. 

 
Rule 5C: Requiring Roll Call 

 

Any motion, except a motion involving the appropriation of funds, 
may be put to the County Legislative Body for a voice vote by the 
Chairman, provided, however, any member may require a roll call by 
the raising of the hand or indication otherwise, either before or 
after the voice vote. All motions concerning appropriation of funds 
shall require a roll call vote. 

 
Rule 5D: Vote Required to Pass a Motion 

 

In order to pass any motion, there must be a vote of a majority of 
the members constituting the County Legislative Body, and not merely 
a majority of the quorum present. 

Page 32



 
Rule 5E: Member May Change Vote 

 

Any member of the County Legislative Body may change his vote before 
the result of a roll call is announced by the Clerk. It shall be 
the duty of the Clerk at the end of each roll call, to require of 
those who passed or were absent when the roll was called if they 
desire to vote; also, if anyone who has voted wishes to change his 
vote. Then the result shall be announced by the Clerk. 

 
 

Rule 5F: Reconsideration of a Motion 
 

When a question has been put to a vote, it shall be in order 
for any member of the prevailing side to move for reconsideration at 
any time during that session of the County Legislative Body. The 
vote to reconsider requires a majority vote. 

 
Rule 6 Elections and Appointments 

 
Rule 6A: Elections with Nomination from the Floor 

 

When the Chairman is to receive nomination from the floor, a member 
may nominate only one person. The floor will be kept open until 
every member has had an opportunity to nominate a person if he so 
desires before the nominations are closed. 

 
Rule 6B: Appointive Office 

 

The persons nominated will be introduced before the County 
Legislative Body if practical and a discussion of each appointee 
shall follow. 

 
Rule 6C: Election or Confirmation 

 
All ballots shall be cast by voice vote as each member’s name is 
called by the Clerk. A majority of the full County Legislative Body 
is required for election or confirmation except as otherwise 
provided by state or private act. 

 
Rule 6D: Second Ballot 

 

If no one is elected on a given ballot, the person receiving the 
smallest number of votes will be dropped and the ballots cast again 
until a person is elected by the required majority. 

Page 33



 
Rule 7 County Legislative Body Committees 

 

The members of all committees of the County Legislative Body, 
including standing committees, will be nominated by the County 
Mayor, and shall be approved by a majority vote of the County 
Legislative Body. Any commission member may call for a vote on 
individual approval of committee members. Each and every member 
shall serve on two standing committees. In the event a member is not 
able to serve, the position shall be filled in the manner the 
positions were originally filled. 

 
Rule 8 Appropriation Request 

 

Any and all requests requiring expenditure of local county funds 
shall be submitted in writing to the County Mayor for review by the 
appropriate committee and shall have an estimated cost included in 
or attached to the request or resolution. A reasonable summary of 
the request shall be included in or attached to the agenda which 
shall be available to all members of the County Legislative Body. 

 
Rule 8A: Appropriations Except by Bond Issue 

 

Any and all appropriation except bond issues, to be assessed or 
approved must be filed in triplicate, the original with the County 
Mayor and copies to the Chairman and the Chairman of the appropriate 
committee at least fifteen days prior to the meeting of the County 
Legislative Body 

 
Rule 8B: Appropriations by Bond Issue 

 

Notice of all proposed appropriations by bond issue shall be filed 
in triplicate, the original with County Mayor and copies to the 
Chairman and Chairman of the appropriate committee at least 
fifteen days prior to the meeting of the County Legislative Body. 
The notice shall contain the proposed amount of the bond issue, 
the purposes for which the bonds are to be issued, and the term of 
the bond issue. 

 
Rule 8C: Committee Recommendations 

 

The committee to which the request has been referred shall assume 
one of the following positions: (1) adoption recommended, with or 
without conditions; (2) rejection recommend; or (3) submitted to the 
County Legislative Body without recommendation. 

 
Rule 9 Amending or Suspending the Rules 

 

Any rule or rules may be suspended or amended at any time by the 
county Legislative Body by a two-thirds majority of the members. 

Page 34



Rule 10 Robert’s Rules of Order 
 

All matters not covered herein shall be governed by Robert’s Rules 
of Order as contained in the latest copyrighted edition. 

 

Rule 11 Presiding Officer 
 

Rule 11A: Election 
 

Annually, at its first session in September, the County Legislative 
Body shall elect a Chairman and a Chairman Pro Tempore. The Chairman 
may be a member of the County Legislative Body or the County Mayor. 
If the County Mayor is elected, and accepts the position, then 
the County Mayor shall have no veto. 
 
Rule 11B: Voting by the Chairman 
 

If the County Mayor serves as Chairman, he may vote only in the 
case of a tie vote by the County Legislative Body or one of its 
committees. If a County Legislative Body member serves as Chairman, 
he or she may vote on all issues coming before the County 
Legislative Body but may not vote again to break a tie vote. 
 
Rule 11C: Call to Order 
 

The County Legislative Body shall be called to order by the 
Chairman. In the absence of the Chairman the Chairman Pro Tempore 
shall preside. In the Absence of the Chairman Pro Tempore, the 
County Legislative Body shall be called to order by the County 
Clerk, and shall elect one of its members to preside over 
deliberations. 
 
Rule 11D: Question of Order 
 

The Presiding Officer shall preserve order and decorum. He may 
speak to points of order in preference to other members, rising 
from his set for that purpose. He shall decide questions of 
order, subject to an appeal to the County Legislative Body by any 
member. 
 
Rule 11E: Members Speaking 
 

Before a member is allowed to speak twice on the same subject, 
the Presiding Officer shall inquire if there is another member 
who has not spoken on that subject and who wishes to speak. 
 
Rule 11F: Motions 
 
Once a motion has been made and duly seconded, the motion shall 
be reduced to writing by the proponent or the Clerk and read by 
the Presiding Officer so that debate on the motion may begin. 
 
Rule 11G: Putting the Question 
 

The Presiding Officer shall rise to state or put a question and 
shall clearly state the question before the County Legislative Body 
before the vote on the question is taken. A member may ask for 

Page 35



clarification of the question up until the result of the vote is 
announced. 
 

Rule 11H: Agenda to Commissioners 
 
A copy of the agenda, attachments, and notice calling each 
County Legislative Body meeting shall be delivered to each 
member on Thursday prior to the following Tuesday night. 

 
Rule 12 County Clerk 

 

Rule 12A: Minutes of the County Legislative Body 
 

The County Clerk shall make copies of the minutes of each County 
Legislative Body meeting and distribute them not later than ten days 
after the meeting. The minutes shall be distributed as follows: 

 
1. One copy to each member. 
2. One copy upon request to each county office, department and/or 

commission head. 
3. One copy upon request to all public, school and university 

libraries in the county. 
4. One copy upon request to all licensed and operating commercial 

radio and television station in the county. 
5. One copy upon request to all newspapers published in the county 

for sale and distribution to the general public. 
6. One or more pages shall be made available to the general public 

at reasonable cost. 
 

Rule 12B: Roll Call 
 

On all appropriations, the Clerk shall call the roll for “Aye” and 
“No” votes. Names will be called in alphabetical order. 

 
Rule 12C: Change of Vote 

 

It shall be the duty of the Clerk at the end of each roll call, to 
inquire of those who passed or were absent when the roll was called 
if they desire to vote; also, if any one who has voted wishes to 
change his vote. Then the results shall be announced by the Clerk. 

 
Rule 12D: Audio Tape of Meetings 

 

The Clerk shall cause all County Legislative Body meeting and County 
Legislative Body committee meetings to be tape recorded and shall 
maintain such tape recordings indefinitely. Members and the public 
may listen to such tape recordings during the Clerk’s normal office 
hours and copies thereof will be made available at reasonable cost. 

 
Rule 13 The Sheriff 

 

The Sheriff shall attend the County Legislative Body meeting while 
in session, or designate some other officer for that purpose, to 
preserve order and carry out the order of the presiding offer of the 
court. 

Page 36



Rule 14 County Attorney 

  The County Attorney shall attend meeting of the County Legislative 
Body to advise on matters of Law. He shall also attend committee 
meetings when called upon by the Chairman of the County Commission. 

Rule 15 Committees General 

  Rule 15A: Officers Election 
 

Upon approval to a committee by the County Legislative Body, the 
members of the committee shall convene and elect a chairman, vice 
chairman, and a secretary from its membership 

 
Rule 15B: Committee Chairman and Agenda 

 

Standing committee chairmen shall notify the Chairman of the major 
matters to be reported to the County Legislative Body at the next 
meeting. This should be done in time for the item to be included on 
the agenda. Committee agendas will be provided to all commissioners 
at least 3 days prior to committee meetings. 

 
Rule 15C: Committee Meeting Open to the Public 

 

All committee meetings shall be open to the public and shall allow 
members of the public a right to address the committee at its 
meetings. 

 
Rule 15D: Authority of Committees 

 

The role and jurisdiction of a County Legislative Body committee is 
to investigate and study matters, provide information and to present 
recommendations, as generally described in the title of the 
committee and as more specifically defined in the subject areas 
listed under the title. Should any question arise as to 
jurisdiction of any committee, it shall be referred to the County 
Legislative Body Chairman for determination, subject to an appeal to 
the County Legislative Body by any County Legislative Body member at 
the next regular meeting. 

 
Rule 15E: Reporting Procedure 

 
Reports of committees shall be given by the committee chairman at 
the proper place in the agenda for the County Commission. 
Recommendations passed by committees shall stand as motions for the 
Commission to debate and to take action on. 

 

Rule 15F: Duties of Committee and Subcommittee Officers 
 

The chairman’s prime responsibility is to call meetings of the 
committee, to serve as presiding officer, and to serve as spokesman 
of the committee in any action or reporting to the County 

Page 37



Legislative Body. Further, the chairman should fully understand and 
make the committee aware of it authority and areas of jurisdiction. 
The vice-chairman is to assume the role and responsibility of the 
chairman in his absence. The secretary shall be responsible for the 
taking of minutes, and the filing and distribution of same. The 
chairman of each committee may vote on all issues coming before the 
body, just as any other member. 

 
Rule 15G: Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

The minutes of all committee meetings shall contain, the day, time 
and place the committee convenes, the members present, a summary of 
matters considered, a record of the voting on the action taken on 
each recommendation to the County Legislative Body, the time of 
adjournment, and a tape recording of the entire meeting. All 
recommendations, whether positive or negative, shall be recorded in 
the minutes that go to the Commissioners in their packer, with no 
censoring allowed. 

 
Rule 15H: Vacancies on Committees 

 
If for any reason one or more members of any respective committee 
vacate their position, the Commission Chairman, subject to the 
approval of the County Legislative Body, shall fill those vacancies 
in the same manner as the original members. 

 
Rule 15I: Special Committees 

 

The County Legislative Body may from time to time appoint such 
special committees as the circumstances require, but such a special 
committee shall be disbanded when its assigned work is completed and 
in no case shall it exist longer than one year unless extended by 
the County Legislative Body. No special committee shall be 
appointed for any purpose when there is a standing committee on the 
same subject. 

 
Rule 15J: Reporting Referrals 

 

The committee to which a request or resolution has been referred 
shall make a report to the County Legislative Body at the next 
regular meeting after its referral unless the County Legislative 
Body has specified otherwise in its request or resolution. 

 

Rule 15 K: Failure to Meet 
 

If for any reason the chairman of a committee fails to call a 
meeting, the County Legislative Body Chairman, or two members of a 
three member committee, or three members of a larger committee may 
do so. 

Page 38



Rule 15L: Quarterly Reports 
 

The quarterly reports submitted by the County Officials and 
departments shall be presented as a part of the appropriate standing 
committee reports. 

Rule 15M: Technical assistance 
 

Committees have any and all authority necessary to request the 
assistance of county, regional, state and federal governmental 
departments, commission and agencies. Committees cannot obligate 
the county involving money without approval of the County 
Legislative Body. 

 
Rule 16 Standing Committees 

 

The Chairman shall be an ex-officio member of all committees and 
sub-committees. In this capacity, the Chairman shall offer 
assistance and advice as needed. 

 
The standing committees of the County Legislative Body are as 
follows: 

 
Criminal Justice and Public Safety: All matters pertaining to the 
criminal justice system including law enforcement, courts, and 
corrections; civil disturbance; juvenile delinquency; alcohol and 
drug abuse; emergency preparedness; fire prevention and control. The 
committee shall also serve as the Jail Committee and inspect the 
jail as required. (No fewer than Five members nor more than Six) 

 
Health and Welfare: All matters pertaining to health care, 
comprehensive health planning, local health services, mental health 
and emergency medical services; social services and welfare 
programs, recreation, solid waste management; soil, water, and 
wildlife conservation; energy conservation, agriculture, flood 
prevention and control. (No fewer than Five members nor more than 
Six) 

 
Education: All matters pertaining to elementary, secondary and 
adult education; vocational and technical education; library 
services. (No fewer than Five members nor more than Six) 

 
County Development: All matters related to general county 
development; residential, commercial and industrial development; 
public facilities, subdivision regulation, zoning, building codes; 
road improvements, highway safety, airport development. (No fewer 
than Five members nor more than Six) 

 
Personnel Committee: All general matters related to personnel; 
compliance with OSHA and TOSHA regulations including reports and 
training, personnel policy, Equal Employment Opportunity 
Legislation, job description, salary administration, salary 
classification, and employee benefits. This does not include 
budgetary issues regarding personnel salaries, requests for 

Page 39



additional personnel, personnel transfers, etc. (No fewer than Five 
members nor more than Six) 

 
Budget: Taxation; finance; investments; property and 
intergovernmental relations, all matters pertaining to the financial 
resources of the county and reports and audit findings; issues 
regarding personnel salaries, requests for promotion, additional 
personnel and personnel transfer; health insurance plans. (Members 
are the five committee chairman and four other commissioners.) 

 
Joint Committee: Committee will meet as a “committee of the whole” 
when issues warrant such a meeting and no other standing committee 
has jurisdiction.  This committee will meet, if called, prior to the 
adoption of the annual budget. The Committee can be called to meet 
by the County Commission Chairman or a vote of the County Commission 

 

Rule 17 Conflicts With Law 
 

In the event that any portion of these rules is determined to be in 
conflict with applicable law, then that portion in conflict shall be 
null and of no effect and the remainder of the rules shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

Page 40



2020-21 STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

The following committees will meet on the Monday, before the 2nd Tuesday 
each month at the times listed: 
 
*Chairperson  +Vice-Chairperson 
 

Development Committee – 
5:30 p.m. 

Health & Welfare 
Committee – 6:15 p.m. 

Personnel Committee – 
7:00 p.m. 

Ben Farley * 
Sylvester Logan 
Kevin J. Powers 
Dale Reaves 
Robert Sills 
Bill Walker + 

Willie German, Jr. 
Tim Goodroe 
Terry Leggett + 
Tommy Perkins 
Steve Reeves * 
Robert Sills 
 

David Lillard, Sr. * 
Claude Oglesby 
Kevin J. Powers 
Jimmy Jordan 
Larry Watkins + 

 
 
 
The following committees will meet on the 2nd Tuesday each month at the 
times listed: 
 
 

Education Committee – 
5:30 p.m. 

Criminal Justice & Public 
Safety  – 6:15 p.m. 

Budget Committee –  
7:00 p.m. 

Charles Dacus * 
Jim Norton 
Dale Reaves 
Bill Walker + 
Jimmy Jordan 
Larry Watkins 

Tim Goodroe + 
Terry Leggett 
Jim Norton 
Tommy Perkins 
Elizabeth “Betsy” Rice * 
Ray Seals 

Charles Dacus 
Ben Farley 
Willie German, Jr. * 
David Lillard, Sr. 
Sylvester Logan 
Claude Oglesby 
Steve Reeves + 
Betsy Rice 
Ray Seals 
 

 

Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



 

 

 DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
Minutes 

September 14, 2020 

 

 

Present 

Farley  Reaves  Powers  Walker, B Sills 
 
 
1) Solar Regulations 

a) Set Backs – The Planning Commission adopted and forwarded a resolution 
increasing the set-backs from dwelling units and roads. 
• After discussion, the committee voted to recommend disapproval on a 

unanimous roll-call vote of a motion by Walker, seconded by Sills. 
b) Building and Site regulations 

• The committee reviewed regulations that would: 
(1) Require a solar site to be in compliance with zoning resolutions 
(2) Not have additional covenants that would restrict Fayette County solar 

planning 
(3) Allow exposed or overhead transmission lines for solar if required using 

the most restrictive regulations of either TVA, Chickasaw Electric or the 
National Electrical Safety Codes 

(4)  Lowers the maximum height of solar panels to 20ft above grade and 
raises the maximum height of other solar associated structures to 40ft 

(5) Adding the requirement that the obligations of the solar improvements are 
also the landowners 

(6) Requirement for construction vehicles for solar projects to use state 
highways for access or unpaved county roads to a state highway 

(7) Adding the requirement that the county will be notified when a solar 
project or land transfers to another owner 

(8) Specifies that a surety bond will be used as the financial assurance of 
removal of solar facilities at the end of the project or that the project will 
be termed a junk yard under Fayette County Planning regulations 

(9) Requires the solar developer to minimize the impact of the facility to the 
neighborhood; makes the landowner also responsible if the design is 
altered; and specifies the BZA can remove approval of the project 

(10) Changes the definition of junkyard to include solar facilities if 
abandoned 

(11) Removes setbacks to interior zoning district boundaries that join a 
public road in RPED to conform with rest of the zoning regulations 

(12) Removes setbacks to zoning district boundaries that join a public 
road in RPED to conform with rest of the zoning regulations 

• After consideration, a motion to recommend acceptance failed. 

Page 58



 

 

• After consideration, a motion to send the proposal with no recommendation to 
the full Commission was accepted unanimously on a roll call vote on a motion 
by Walker, seconded by Powers. 

c) Restriction of Solar Facilities within One miles of TVA 161 kv Transmission 
lines 
• After discussion the committee voted to recommend disapproval of the 

request on a roll call vote of a motion by Powers, seconded by Farley. 
2) Rezoning – 15830 Hwy 57, Moscow – B-1 (Limited Business0 to B-3 (Community 

Business) Curly Harris 
• The applicant wishes to rezone so that a “carry out and dining facility” can be 

constructed. 
• The Planning Commission recommended approval. 
• After discussion the committee voted by roll call to recommend approval on a 

motion by Walker, seconded by Sills. 
3) County Boundary Discussion 

a) Mayor Taylor reported to the committee that the Shelby County boundary with 
Fayette County is not definite and that the Property Assessors of both counties 
had been working on a description. 

b) Mayor Taylor listed several reasons for defining the exact location of the 
boundary: 
• Census count 
• Zoning regulations 
• Building permits 
• AFT 
• Sales Tax 
• Growth Plan 

c) Conversations with Rep Ron Gant’s office are in the works and legislation from 
Nashville appears to be the only way to fix the problem 

d) As soon as a process for providing Nashville with information is fixed, we will 
move forward, hopefully within the next month or so. 

4) Planning Commission Nominees 
a) Mayor Taylor presented two nominees for the Planning Commission: 

• Paul Lewis – Owner and operator of Lewis’s Hardware in Moscow 
• Don Fletcher – road quality engineer for Lehman Roberts Construction  

b) After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to unanimously recommend the 
nominees to the Commission on a motion by Farley, seconded by Sills. 

5) Industrial Development Board nominees 
a) Mayor presented two nominees to the Industrial Development Board: 

• Steve Crafton – owner of AirVeyor of Somerville, an industrial material 
movement company 

• Vip Lewis – former County Commissioner; and Clerk and Master 

Page 59



 

 

b) After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to recommend both nominees to 
the Commission on a motion by Sills, seconded by Reaves. 

6) Old School Board and Somerville Elementary professional services contract 
a) Mayor Taylor presented contracts with Fleming Architects to address the Old 

School Board office and Somerville Elementary.  The Somerville Elementary 
contract would address planning and budgeting for future uses.  The School Board 
contract would address engineering, surveying, design and construction 
agreements to make use of the facility 

b) After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to move the contract to Budget 
without recommendation on a motion by Farley, seconded by Powers.   

 
 
 
Meeting adjourned. 

Page 60



 

 

HEALTH AND WELFARE COMMITTEE 
Minutes 

September 14, 2020 

 

 

Present 

Leggett Perkins German Reeves  Sills  Goodroe 
 
1) Ambulance Report 

• The number of runs for this year is 839, 39 over last year at this time. 
• It is early in the budget year, but revenues are coming in better than expected and 

could reach about $1.875 million for the year ($1.75 million budgeted); Last 
year’s revenue was $1.69 million. 

• Collections are strong. 
• The County has received a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) to 

purchase two new ambulances. 
2) Animal Shelter Update 

• Mayor Taylor told the committee that he had just received a contract to do a 
Phase 1 environmental study for the parcel of land for the new animal shelter. 

• The next-door neighbor has agreed to sell 1.5 acres to the county. 
• We will be using Spirit Architecture to design the facility. 

3) Chronic Wasting Disease (CWD) Update 
• Discussions are on-going to build an incinerator to dispose of deer carcass with 

CWD. 
• This project has not moved much.  He will keep the Commission up-to-date with 

its progress. 
4) Mental Health Contract 

• Department of Mental Health for Tennessee has provided a contract for services 
to be used by judges when defendants need to be evaluated. 

• The contract does not require usage, but sets the fees if they are used. 
• After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to recommend approval on a 

motion by Leggett, seconded by Goodroe. 
5) Ambulance – Budget Amendment 

• A budget amendment to place the insurance proceeds and additional funds in 
Construction Projects Fund 171 to purchase a new ambulance. 

• After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to recommend approval on a 
motion by Perkins, seconded by Sills. 

 
Meeting adjourned. 

Page 61



PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 

September 14, 2020 

Minutes 

 
 Present     

Powers 
Oglesby 
Farley 
 

 
1. Sheriff’s Employee Step Raises Policy 

• Inspector Garcia reviewed the newly proposed job classification policy for 
the Sheriff’s Office. 

• The plan puts into place a classification system to make use of the 2.5% 
increase in pay that the County Commission allotted to raise salaries to be 
more competitive. 

• The plan does not require any vote of the Commission and only requires 
the reading of the policy into the Commission’s minutes to become 
effective. 

 
Meeting adjourned. 

Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



 

 

EDUCATION COMMITTEE 
Minutes 

September 15, 2020 

 

 

Present 
Dacus  Watkins Norton  Reaves 

 
1) School Update 

• Dr. Connie Smith updated the Committee on the progress of opening schools 
during the pandemic. 

• The plan is open for in person schooling on September 28th, but only if the cases 
have not increased. 

• A new superintendent has been chosen by the School Board.  Her name is Dr. 
Versi Hamlett.  She was formerly the superintendent of Humboldt School System 
and is currently a profession in Jackson for UT Martin.  Contract details are being 
worked out. 

2) Library Board Recommendations 
• The Library Board sent two nominees for open positions for the Board: 

i) Ronald Turner 
ii) Melissa Ferge 

• Both are Fayette County residents 
• After Discussion, the committee voted by roll call to recommend the nominees to 

the full Commission on a motion by Reaves, seconded by Norton. 
 
 
Meeting Adjourned. 

Page 83



CRIMINAL JUSTICE & PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Minutes 

September 15, 2020 
Present     
Norton  Rice Perkins  Leggett  Seals  Goodroe 

 
1) Sheriff’s Report 

• The committee reviewed the Sheriff’s Report. 
• There were 128 inmates as of the meeting date. 

2) Sheriff’s Employee Job Classification Policy 
• Inspector Garcia reviewed the newly proposed job classification policy for the 

Sheriff’s Office. 
• The plan puts into place a classification system to make use of the 2.5% increase 

in pay that the County Commission allotted to raise salaries to be more 
competitive. 

• The plan does not require any vote of the Commission and only requires the 
reading of the policy into the Commission’s minutes to become effective. 

3) Fire Department 5 Year Plan 
• Chief Richard Hartfield presented a Five-Year Plan to improve the Fire 

Department. 
• Included is a training center in Oakland, another fast response station, an 

operations officer, a stipend for medical first responders. 
4) Justice Complex Master Plan 

• Mayor Taylor presented a contract to work on a master plan with surveying and budget 
estimates on what may be needed at the Justice Complex for growth. 

• TCI and CTAS both did studies that showed how to improve the facility and that 
additional structures may be needed. 

• The contract is with A2H Engineering. 
• After discussion the committee voted by roll call to recommend approval to the 

Commission on a motion by Norton, seconded by Goodroe. 
5) Sheriff’s Office – Budget Amendment 

• A budget amendment is requested to reallocate existing funding in the correct line to 
implement the Sheriff’s employee policy. 

• After discussion, the committee recommended approval on a roll call vote on a motion by 
Norton, seconded by Goodroe. 

 
 
 
Meeting Adjourned. 

Page 84



BUDGET COMMITTEE 
Minutes 

September 15, 2020 

 
Present 

Reeves  Oglesby Farley  Dacus 
Rice  German Seals 
 
1) Employee Health Insurance 

• Mayor Taylor presented to the Commission a proposal for employee health insurance that 
would lower premiums for the employees, save the county expenses, and would lower 
out-of-pocket costs for the employees. 

• The plan would take the county out of the State’s system for a minimum of two years. 
• The plan incorporates a “gap insurance” plan with a high deductible Blue Cross insurance 

product.  This is similar to what the county used a few years back before the state 
disallowed the use of a “gap plan” to save money. 

• If approved, the state would be notified and employees would begin enrolling in October. 
• Two meetings (one by Zoom and one in person) are planned for the employees to ask 

questions. 
• After discussion, the commission agreed to take it up at the full Commission meeting. 

2) Old School Board and Somerville Elementary professional services contract 
• Mayor Taylor presented contracts with Fleming Architects to address the Old School 

Board office and Somerville Elementary.  The Somerville Elementary contract would 
address planning and budgeting for future uses.  The School Board contract would 
address engineering, surveying, design and construction agreements to make use of the 
facility 

• After discussion about the contracts and possible interest from a buyer of Somerville 
Elementary, Mayor Taylor asked that for now to consider only the School Board contract. 

• After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to move the contract to Budget without 
recommendation on a motion by Oglesby, seconded by Reeves.   

3) Mental Health Contract 
• Department of Mental Health for Tennessee has provided a contract for services to be 

used by judges when defendants need to be evaluated. 
• The contract does not require usage, but sets the fees if they are used. 
• After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to recommend approval on a motion by 

Reeves, seconded by Farley. 
4) Sheriff’s Employee Job Classification Policy 

• Inspector Garcia reviewed the newly proposed job classification policy for the Sheriff’s 
Office. 

• The plan puts into place a classification system to make use of the 2.5% increase in pay 
that the County Commission allotted to raise salaries to be more competitive. 

• The plan does not require any vote of the Commission and only requires the reading of 
the policy into the Commission’s minutes to become effective. 

Page 85



5) Justice Complex Master Plan 
• Mayor Taylor presented a contract to work on a master plan with surveying and budget estimates 

on what may be needed at the Justice Complex for growth. 
• TCI and CTAS both did studies that showed how to improve the facility and that additional 

structures may be needed. 
• The contract is with A2H Engineering. 
• After discussion the committee voted by roll call to recommend approval to the Commission on a 

motion by Rice, seconded by Reeves. 
6) Budget Amendment – County Clerk 

• Sue Culver, County Clerk, is asking to move funds out of a reserve account to use for 
supplies. 

• After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to recommend acceptance to the Full 
Commission on a motion by Oglesby, seconded by Farley. 

7) Sheriff’s Office – Budget Amendment 
• A budget amendment is requested to reallocate existing funding in the correct line to implement 

the Sheriff’s employee policy. 
• After discussion, the committee recommended approval on a roll call vote on a motion by Rice, 

seconded by Dacus. 
8) Ambulance – Budget Amendment 

• A budget amendment to place the insurance proceeds and additional funds in 
Construction Projects Fund 171 to purchase a new ambulance. 

• After discussion, the committee voted by roll call to recommend approval on a motion by 
Reeves, seconded by Rice. 

 
 
Meeting Adjourned.  

Page 86



5101 Wheelis Drive, Suite 215 | Memphis, TN 38117 | P: 901-767-3924 | F: 901-767-7136 
 

 
 
 

126 Market Street  
6,000 sf +- 

Somerville, TN 38068 
Scope of A/E Services 

FAYETTE COUNTY 
September 14, 2020 

 

 
Description of Basic Services 
 
A. Programming Phase 

i. Meet with staff/key members to determine both short and long term phases for renovation 
and occupancy; casting the vision 

ii. Assign square foot requirements to each space 
iii. Develop a written program outlining development based upon needs and phases 

 
B. Site and Building Analysis Phase 

i. Conduct a site feasibility study to document existing conditions and features of the site and 
building.  Including Electrical, Plumbing and Mechanical on-site review 

• Field verification & measuring.  Develop and draw as builts of the existing building 
and grounds 

ii. Obtain surveys and plans of existing building provided by owner of the proposed site 
iii. Identify the constraints and opportunities for the building 

 
C. Planning Phase 

i. Create a conceptual plan showing all the renovation needed to occupy the building 
ii. Phase the renovation into areas of work/improvement per Owner’s budget per phase 
iii. Provide an estimate per phase 
iv. Meet with staff to review concepts and estimates 

 
D. Construction Documents 

i. Basic Services will be provided for the design of the construction documents for phased 
construction and bids (Maximum 2 bids).  

• Schematic Design Phase 
• Design Development Phase 
• Construction Document Phase 
• Bid Phase 
• Construction Administration 

ii. We will provide Architectural, Mechanical, Plumbing, and Electrical engineering services as 
part of Basic Services 

iii. Per initial structural engineer’s review of the building, there is not any apparent structural 
issues.  Due to the age of the building, it was designed and constructed prior to seismic code 
requirements.  If one does not modify the structure more than 5% of the building or change 
the occupancy, the building will not be required by code to meet current seismic upgrades.  
There are existing cracks in the brick veneer that appear to be from storm water 

Page 87



5101 Wheelis Drive, Suite 215 | Memphis, TN 38117 | P: 901-767-3924 | F: 901-767-7136 
 

accumulation.  The cracks should be monitored and drainage away from the building is 
needed.   Removal of any interior bearing walls and new roof penetrations should be 
reviewed/designed by a structural engineer. Structural engineer will bill hourly if this work is 
needed with your approval.   

iv. 3 meetings during design 
v. Estimates will be provided per phase 

 
E. Additional Services 

i. Services excluded from our Basic Services are listed below.  Additional Services will be 
provided only with the owner’s prior consent and will be billed hourly.  See attachment ‘A” 
Schedule of Hourly Rates 

• Interior design-finishes 
• Furniture Selection and Furniture Bid 
• Renderings 
• Re-Design for Value Engineering after Design Development Phase 

 
F. Exclusions 

i. Other possible services and fees excluded from our Basic Services are listed below.   
• Structural Engineering (hourly if needed, see item D.iii) 
• Cost Estimating 
• Fire Protection Engineering 
• Civil Engineering (Letter of Agreement attached) 
• Survey (Letter of Agreement to be provided on a later date) 
• Environmental Ph I, Ph II and Geotechnical Soil Report 
• Telecommunications 
• Landscape Design 
• Detailed Cost Estimating 
• Security, Cabling and Access Control 
• Town of Somerville and Review / Permit Fees 
• Voice/data, TV/CATV 
• Audio and Visual Design Services 
• Specifications for Voice/Data and Audio/Visual systems including cameras, 

projectors, smart boards, racks, and wiring.  Initial design from Electrical Engineer 
will be reviewed by Owner’s low voltage provider.  Our basic services (Elect. Eng.) 
will provide conduit and rough in boxes for data, AV and cable needs.  

• Energy Modeling, Commissioning and LEED design 
• Acoustical Design 

 
G. Summary of Fees 

i. Our fee for these basic services will be lump sum fee                                                  $56,720 
Typical reimbursables (printing, deliveries and travel expense shall be billed at 1.10 x our 
cost.    

 
H. Agreement 

i. All above items and conditions shall be covered by this letter of agreement. 
ii. If the above terms are agreeable, please sign below and the Attachment ‘B’ (Terms and 

Conditions).  
Thank you for this opportunity and please do not hesitate to call me if you have any questions. 
 
Very Truly Yours, 
FLEMING/ASSOCIATES/ARCHITECTS, P.C. 

 

 

Ellen A. Wadley 
Senior Project Manager/Architect 
Attachments:  ‘A’ Hourly Rates 
    ‘B’ Terms and Conditions 
   ‘C’ Scope of Basic Services 
   ‘D’ Fisher Arnold Survey & Civil Proposal 

Page 88



 
ATTACHMENT ‘A’ 

 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES 
 Updated August 2019 
 
PRESIDENT, SR. PRINCIPAL $ 325.00 

Scott Fleming  
 
PRINCIPAL $ 260.00 

Curt Pierce  
Steve Landwehr 

 
DIRECTOR OF INTERIOR DESIGN/PRINCIPAL $ 260.00 

Veronica Tansey 
 
SENIOR PROJECT MANAGER $ 175.00   
       Ellen Wadley 
 Tamara Redburn 
 Richard Wiggs  
 
PROJECT MANAGER $ 150.00   
       Michael Winter 
 Kari Conrad 
  
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION $ 125.00 
       Gary Gibson 
   
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION COORDINATOR                               $ 115.00 
 Katrina Terrett 
 
INTERN ARCHITECT $ 125.00 
 Jo Picha 
 Joe Mangialardi 
 Matt Pate 
 Tre Yancy 
 Tori Dobbs 
 
INTERIOR DESIGN PROJECT MANAGER $ 150.00 

Julie Gasaway 
Christy Darr 
 

INTERIOR DESIGNER $ 125.00 
Millie Quinn 

 
INTERN INTERIOR DESIGNER $ 100.00 
 Anna Utley 
 
TECH STAFF $ 130.00  
      Carol O’Daniel 
 
MARKETING COORDINATOR $ 100.00 
      Krissie Mahr 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT $  50.00 
      Anna Parker 
 
OFFICE MANAGER $ 100.00 
      Theresa Hughes 
 
ACCOUNTING MANAGER $ 100.00 
      Denise Drewry 

Page 89



ATTACHMENT ‘B’ 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
 

1. Authorization to Proceed and Standard of Care: Execution of this agreement by Owner hereby 
authorizes Fleming Associates/Architects P.C. (“Fleming”), hereinafter referred to as “Architect,” to 
proceed with the work, unless otherwise provided for in this agreement. Architect shall exercise 
that degree of care, skill and diligence in rendering all of its services under this Agreement in 
accordance with that prevailing among the architectural firms when performing services for 
projects similar to the Project in the jurisdiction where the Project is located (the “Professional 
Standard”). The Architect makes no warranty in this Agreement, express or implied, other than to 
comply with the Professional Standard in providing services pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
2. Payment to Architect: Architect will bill monthly for fees and reimbursable expenses. Payment is 

due upon receipt. Outstanding balances of 30 days or more will accrue interest at 12% per 
annum. If full or satisfactory payment is not made within 30 days from the date of the invoice, 
work on this Project may be stopped at the discretion of Architect without any penalty from the 
Owner. If legal action is required in order to collect monies due to Architect, the Owner shall be 
liable for any attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in such action in addition to the fees and 
termination expenses. 

 
3. Reimbursable Expenses: Reimbursable expenses are in addition to compensation for the 

Architect’s services and include expenses incurred by the Architect and Architect’s Consultants 
directly related to the Project, including but not limited to: (1) transportation in connection with the 
Project, authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence, electronic communications, reproductions, 
plots, postage, handling, delivery of instruments of service to the extent not included in Basic 
Services, renderings, models and mock-ups requested by the Owner; and, (2) the expense of 
additional insurance coverage or limits requested by the Owner in excess of that normally carried 
by the Architect and Architect’s Consultants. In addition to the direct costs of the Reimbursable 
Expenses, 10% will be added for cost of funds, handling and overhead (multiple for reimbursable 
expenses: 1.1). 

 
4. Architect’s Consultants: For changes in the services and/or additional services of Architect’s 

Consultants, compensation shall be computed as a multiple of 1.10 times the amounts billed to 
the Architect for such services. 

 
5. Reuse of Documents: The design documents developed under this Agreement (Contract 

Documents) are instruments of Fleming’s services and Fleming retains an ownership interest in the 
documents. The Contract Documents are subject to re-use fees if used for other projects. The re- 
use of these Contract Documents for other projects can be negotiated upon written notification 
from the Owner of its re-use intent. Should the Architect not be retained to provide site adaptation 
and revision services of the documents for other developments, the Owner shall compensate the 
Architect for such re-use fees negotiated with the Architect and will execute in favor of the Architect 
a complete release of liability and indemnity agreement for such proposed re-use. 

 
6. Termination: Either party may terminate this agreement without cause upon 30 days written notice 

to the other party. Additionally, if the Owner does not make timely payments to the Architect or 
otherwise perform in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be considered cause for 
termination or, at the Architect’s option, cause for suspension of performance of services under 
this Agreement. In the event of termination of the Agreement, the Architect shall be compensated 
for services performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due. 

 

Page 1 of 3 

Page 90



Page 2 of 3  

7. Dispute Resolution: The Owners and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other 
matters in question between them by mediation in accordance with the Construction Industry 
Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The parties shall share the mediator’s fee 
and any filing fees equally. Mediation shall be a condition precedent to arbitration, legal or 
equitable proceedings. 

 
8. Limitation of Liability: In order for the Owner to receive the benefits of a fee which includes a 

lesser allowance for risk funding, Owner agrees to limit Architect’s liability for any cause or 
combination of causes arising from Architect’s or Architect’s Consultants’ professional acts, errors 
or omissions, such that the total aggregate liability of Architect shall not exceed Architect’s fee for 
the services rendered on this Project, not including Reimbursable Expenses. The limitation of 
liabilities and the indemnification provisions contained herein will survive the termination of this 
Agreement. Each party specifically acknowledges they have received consideration for the 
limitations granted herein. 

 
9. Waiver of Consequential Damages: A breach of this Agreement may cause both parties to 

experience damages that are indirectly related to the breach or that were not foreseeable by either 
party at the time this Agreement was entered into. Such damages are called consequential 
damages and may include, but are not limited to, loss of use and loss of profit. Neither party shall 
be liable to the other for any consequential damages incurred by either party due to the fault of the 
other, regardless of the nature of this fault. 

 
10. Interpretation: This Agreement shall be governed by the law of Tennessee. As used herein, the 

term “Architect” includes or refers to interior designer when applicable. The term “Architect’s 
Consultant” refers to those consultants that contract directly with Architect. 

 
11. No Third Party Beneficiaries: Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual 

relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the Owner or Architect 
and there are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. 

 
12. Construction Administration: Architect shall perform Construction Administration as set forth in the 

basic scope of services or as set forth in additional service agreements. Construction 
Administration is defined as the process in which the Architect (1) becomes generally familiar with 
and keeps the Owner informed about the progress and quality of the portion of construction 
completed (“work”), (2) endeavors to guard the Owner against defects and deficiencies in the 
work, and (3) determines in general if the work is being performed in a manner indicating that the 
work, when fully completed, will be in substantial accordance with the Contract Documents. 
However, Architect shall not be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to 
check the quality or quantity of the work. Architect shall not have control over or charge of, nor be 
responsible for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for 
safety precautions and programs in connection with the work. Architect shall not be responsible 
for the Contractor’s failure to perform the work in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. 

Page 91



Page 3 of 3  

 

Owner:    
 
 

Date:   By:    
 
 
 

FLEMING/ASSOCIATES/ARCHITECTS P.C. 
 
 

Date:__________________  By:    9/14/20

Page 92



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
ATTACHMENT ‘C’ 

Scope of Basic Services 
 
 

Step 1 – Programming Phase 
Our services will begin with a review of the Programming where we will meet with you to confirm your goals and 
aspirations for the project. This phase of work will include the establishment of a schedule and overall budget. We 
will assist in the acquisition of documents required to design the project. We will monitor and update the schedule 
and the budget with each phase of the design work. The Programming Phase of work will update the programmatic 
space requirements listing each space, size and the departmental areas to be included in the building.  

 
Step 2 – Schematic Design Phase 
In this phase, we will start with a code review, then develop conceptual floor plans with the major plan components, 
areas and schematic elevations of the proposed project. We will create the budget based on this schematic design 
before proceeding to the next phase.  We will adjust scope of work and possibly develop two bid packages 
dependent on Owner’s budget. We will meet with local building, fire, engineering and other code officials to 
confirm the design complies with applicable codes. Once approved, we will proceed to Design Development.  

 
Step 3 – Design Development  
Design Development provides more details on the drawings showing the general building engineering systems, 
construction materials and types, and detailed layouts showing all fixtures, furniture and utilities in more detail on 
the drawings. We will work with the Cost Estimator to evaluate the pros and cons of the major building systems, 
including the structural and mechanical systems. We also would develop an interior space plan to show general 
furniture locations and proposed materials and finishes. This phase concludes a budget estimate prepared by the 
Cost Estimator based on the more detailed design. Once this phase is approved, we would proceed with 
Construction Documents Phase.  

 
Step 4 – Construction Documents Phase  
The Construction Document Phase consists of developing the final drawings and specifications necessary for 
bidding, permitting and construction. These drawings include all the details necessary to construct the building 
including the structural, mechanical and electrical systems. We will have a review process of the construction 
drawings with you at the 50% complete. Once the drawings are done, we will have a final review of the drawings 
with the appropriate stakeholders to ensure everything is as you require.  

 
Step 5 – Bid Phase 
We will issue Construction Documents (plans and specifications) for bidding the project, and to the appropriate 
building departments for permits. During this phase, we will answer contractor questions, clarify any items and 
issue addenda. We will hold a pre-bid meeting with the contractors and answer any questions that arise in a final 
addendum, making sure the bidders are all pricing the job “apples-to-apples.” We will assist in receiving the bids, 
analyzing them and recommending a low bidder to Fayette County. After the bids are reviewed and the final cost 
is negotiated with the contractor, we will prepare an Owner-Contractor agreement.  

 
Step 6 – Construction Administration Phase 
We will visit the site at appropriate intervals during construction, check submittals, check shop drawings, pay 
applications, and other construction phase duties. We will review change order requests, review them with the 
owner and process them accordingly to keep the job moving. We will hold monthly progress meetings with the 
contractor and owner to monitor quality, cost, and schedule. At final close out, we will create a punch list, final 
substantial completion certificate and coordinate the issuance of close-out documents, warranties, and instruction 
manuals. We will then set the date for the one-year warranty walk through.  
 

Page 93



September 14, 2020

ATTACHMENT 'D'

Page 94



September 14, 2020

Page 95



September 14, 2020

Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Adjustment to Reserve Accounts: DECREASE INCREASE

34515 Restricted for Finance 2,958.60$                   

TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE TO 
RESERVE ACCOUNTS: 2,958.60$                -$                        

Adjustment to Expenditure Accounts: DECREASE INCREASE

52500 County Clerk's Office
435 Office Supplies 2,958.60$                   

Subtotal-52500 -$                            2,958.60$                   

TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE TO 
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS: -$                        2,958.60$                

Prior Estimated Expenditures 19,849,090.00$       

Total Estimated Expenditures this Amendment 19,852,048.60$       

Projected Fund Balance before Amendment 8,066,721.00$         

Change in Fund Balance this Amendment -$                        

Estimated Ending Fund Balance as of June 30, 2020 8,066,721.00$         

RESOLUTION

Sep-20
F/Y 20/21

BUDGET AMENDMENT
COUNTY GENERAL FUND

                      BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Legislative Body and/or the Board of County Commissioners 
of Fayette County, Tennessee, in regular sessions on this 22nd day of September, 2020, it being the fourth 
Tuesday of the month and the regular monthly meeting of the County Legislative Body in the Criminal Justice 
Center in Somerville, Tennessee.

                       That the General Fund #101 Budget be amended in the following words and figures, to wit:

Page 116



Adjustment to Expenditure Accounts: DECREASE INCREASE

54110 Sheriff's Department
105 Supervisor / Director 3,716.00$                   
106 Deputies 7,135.00$                   
108 Investigators 4,847.00$                   
109 Captains 851.00$                      
110 Lieutenants 7,083.00$                   
115 Sergeants 9,439.00$                   
169 Part-Time 2,497.00$                   

Subtotal-54110 7,986.00$                   27,582.00$                 

54150 Drug Control
108 Investigators 4,832.00$                   
110 Lieutenants 751.00$                      

Subtotal-54150 -$                            5,583.00$                   

54210 Jail
103 Assistant 1,015.00$                   
105 Supervisor / Director 3,153.00$                   
109 Captains 379.00$                      
110 Lieutenants 949.00$                      
115 Sergeants 5,792.00$                   
121 Data Processing 1,859.00$                   
148 Disptachers 16,017.00$                 
160 Guards 10,275.00$                 
161 Secretary 1,779.00$                   
167 Maintenance 192.00$                      

Subtotal-54210 31,894.00$                 9,516.00$                   

RESOLUTION

Sep-20
F/Y 20/21

BUDGET AMENDMENT
COUNTY GENERAL FUND

                      BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Legislative Body and/or the Board of County Commissioners 
of Fayette County, Tennessee, in regular sessions on this 22nd day of September, 2020, it being the fourth 
Tuesday of the month and the regular monthly meeting of the County Legislative Body in the Criminal Justice 
Center in Somerville, Tennessee.

                       That the General Fund #101 Budget be amended in the following words and figures, to wit:

Page 117



54900 Other Public Safety (Sheriff's Shop)
142 Mechanics 2,801.00$                   

Subtotal-54900 2,801.00$                   -$                            

TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE TO 
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS: 42,681.00$              42,681.00$              

Prior Estimated Expenditures 19,849,090.00$       

Total Estimated Expenditures this Amendment 19,849,090.00$       

Projected Fund Balance before Amendment 8,066,721.00$         

Change in Fund Balance this Amendment -$                        

Estimated Ending Fund Balance as of June 30, 2020 8,066,721.00$         

Page 118



Adjustment to Revenue Accounts: INCREASE DECREASE

49700 Insurance Recovery 140,718.00$               

TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE TO 
REVENUE ACCOUNTS: 140,718.00$            -$                        

Adjustment to Expenditure Accounts: DECREASE INCREASE

55130 Ambulance
718 Motor Vehicles 188,000.00$               

Subtotal-55130 -$                            188,000.00$               

TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE TO 
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS: -$                        188,000.00$            

Prior Estimated Expenditures 1,570,323.00$         

Total Estimated Expenditures this Amendment 1,758,323.00$         

Projected Fund Balance before Amendment 375,977.00$            

Change in Fund Balance this Amendment (47,282.00)$            

Estimated Ending Fund Balance as of June 30, 2020 328,695.00$            

RESOLUTION

Sep-20
F/Y 20/21

BUDGET AMENDMENT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

                      BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Legislative Body and/or the Board of County Commissioners 
of Fayette County, Tennessee, in regular sessions on this 22nd day of September, 2020, it being the fourth 
Tuesday of the month and the regular monthly meeting of the County Legislative Body in the Criminal Justice 
Center in Somerville, Tennessee.
                       That the Capital Projects Fund #171 Budget be amended in the following words and figures, to 
wit:

Page 119



Adjustment to Expenditure Accounts: DECREASE INCREASE

54310 Fire Department
106 Deputies 21,183.00$                 
169 Part-Time 6,017.00$                   
196 In-Service Training 4,000.00$                   
322 Evaluation & Testing 2,500.00$                   
502 Building & Contents Insurance 4,200.00$                   
506 Liability Insurance 8,500.00$                   
701 Administration Equipment 3,000.00$                   
708 Communication Equipment 5,000.00$                   

Subtotal-54310 27,200.00$                 27,200.00$                 

TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE TO 
EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS: 27,200.00$              27,200.00$              

Prior Estimated Expenditures 19,849,090.00$       

Total Estimated Expenditures this Amendment 19,849,090.00$       

Projected Fund Balance before Amendment 8,066,721.00$         

Change in Fund Balance this Amendment -$                        

Estimated Ending Fund Balance as of June 30, 2021 8,066,721.00$         

RESOLUTION

Sep-20
F/Y 20/21

BUDGET AMENDMENT
COUNTY GENERAL FUND

                      BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Legislative Body and/or the Board of County Commissioners 
of Fayette County, Tennessee, in regular sessions on this 22nd day of September, 2020, it being the fourth 
Tuesday of the month and the regular monthly meeting of the County Legislative Body in the Criminal Justice 
Center in Somerville, Tennessee.

                       That the General Fund #101 Budget be amended in the following words and figures, to wit:

Page 120



FAYETTE COUNTY DEPUTY CHIEF of OPERATIONS 
 
 

NATURE OF WORK 
The Deputy Chief of Operations serves as the third in command with the Fayette County Fire 
Department. The Deputy Chief aids the Fire Chief and asst. Chief in providing leadership to the fire 
department staff and helps define, establish, and attain overall goals and objectives of the fire 
department. The Deputy Chief is responsible in helping deliver quality fire prevention, suppression, 
inspections, public education, hazardous materials incident mitigation, rescue, and emergency 
services to the citizens of Fayette county.  
The Deputy Chief is responsible for helping to assure compliance with all legislative, judicial, and 
administrative policies, procedures, and laws. Assumes command and control of all fire department 
operations in the absence of the Fire Chief or Asst Chief.  
 
EXAMPLES OF WORK 
(listed examples do not include all duties set forth herein) 
1. Using knowledge of the scope of services provided by the fire department and personal leadership 
skills. The Deputy Chief of Operations communicates with the Fire Chief and Asst. Chief to develop 
priorities for new and existing activities of the fire department.  
 
2. Represents Fayette County in front of the public, news media, and government agencies in a 
manner that conveys a positive image of county government and that fosters cooperation and 
support. 
 
3. oversees the technical operations of the fire department and is responsible for compliance with all 
legal and financial requirements. 
 
4. Makes recommendations to the Fire Chief/Asst. Chief regarding the organizational structure of the 
fire department and changes that may be required in that structure, as well as recommendations 
concerning the hiring of department staff. 
 
5. Ensures the establishment, maintenance, and supervision of the command function at large scale 
emergency operations is adhered to. Will act as the incident Commander in Large Scale operations in 
the absence of the Fire Chief / Asst. Chief, or when needed to assume that position.  
 
6. Assists the Fire Chief/Asst. Chief in directing the enforcement of all county codes and ordinances in 
a manner that protects and safeguards the welfare of the public and enhances the quality of life in 
Fayette County. 
 
7. Serves as the fire department liaison to Emergency Management. Attends numerous planning and 
operational emergency management functions on behalf of the Fayette County Fire Dept. 
 
8. Assumes lead responsibility for the operations and maintenance of department technology systems 
as they pertain to FireCom. Attends and represents Fayette County fire department at various 
FireCom/911 Board meetings.  
 

Page 121



9. Assist the Fire Chief/Asst. Chief in establishing and monitoring progress with the short and long-
range plans and goals of the fire department.  
 
10. Performs related work as assigned and/or required.  
 
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
 

• High school diploma; 
• 10 years of Full-time firefighting and prevention experience with at least 2 years at the rank of 

Fire Captain or its equivalent; 
• Must have a minimum of an Associates in Fire Science or a related field that can be 

demonstrated to be useful in the administration of a professional fire department; 
• Must hold, at minimum, a current IFSAC certification of Fire Officer 2; 
• Must hold, at minimum, a current IFSAC certification of Firefighter 2 or its equivalent State of 

Tennessee Firefighter 3; 
• Must hold, at minimum, a State of Tennessee EMT Basic certification; 
• Valid State of Tennessee drivers license with a clean driving record; 
• Demonstration of continued education throughout that person’s career; 

 
DESIRABLE EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE 
 

• Bachelors of Fire Science or Fire Administration or related field; 
• Experience in the management of Combination and Volunteer fire departments with fulltime 

and volunteer employees; 
 

THOROUGH AND EXTENSIVE KNOWLEDGE OF: 
 

1. Principles and practices of current fire department administration; 
2. Rules and regulations of the Fayette county fire department; 
3. Knowledge of territory within the boundaries of Fayette county; 
4. Knowledge of principles, practices, procedures, and equipment, used in modern firefighting 

and in the protection of life and property from fire; 
5. Knowledge of principles, practices, procedures, and equipment, used in medical response; 
6. Knowledge of principles, practices, procedures, and equipment, used in hazardous 

materials response and mitigation; 
7. Knowledge of principles, practices, procedures, and equipment, used in technical rescue 

including auto extrication and rope rescue; 
8. Uses and limitations of the various types of apparatus and equipment used by the Fayette 

County fire department; as well as their operational and maintenance requirements; 
9. Strategic planning and the implementation of strategic master plans; 
10. Effective methods of planning, training, assigning, and directing personnel and equipment 

for the most efficient use for fighting fires and responding to other emergency situations 
such as hazardous materials incidents, emergency medical response, and technical 
rescue;  

11. The incident command system and the National Incident Management System (NIMS); 
12. Leadership and Management of modern combination and volunteer fire departments; 

Page 122



13. Knowledge of county, state, and federal codes, regulations, and ordinances that affect the 
fire protection system within Fayette County; 

 
 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 
 

In compliance with the ADA requirements, the following functions have been determined 
essential to the successful performance of this position and are necessary qualifications of the 
candidate with or without reasonable accommodations:  
 
Must have the ability to read, write, and speak English; 
 
Must have the ability to reason and react calmly in all emergency situations; 
 
Must demonstrate honesty and integrity in personal behavior and attitudes; 
 
Must have the ability to establish and maintain an effective working relationship with all Fayette 
County Fire personnel, the general public, county officials, and all outside agencies; 
 
Must be free of substance abuse or usage, legal or illegal, in order to maintain effective job 
performance; 
 
Must have the ability to plan, install, and carry out programs of departmental operations and activities, 
personnel training, and fire prevention; 
 
Must have the ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with civic and official 
groups, and the general public as well as to command and hold the respect of subordinates; 
 
Must be able to perform duties in a highly stressful environment where encounters with violent, 
unpredictable, and possibly contagious individuals as well as threats to life and personal safety may 
occur; 
 
Must have the ability to analyze organizational and operational problems and recommend effective 
improvement; 
 
Must have the ability to prepare clear and concise administrative and technical reports. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



Page 124



Sales Tax Average 2020-21 Monthly School Collections Target is 355,526$                        

Revenue by Month
(Net Collections)

Estimated
Tax Collections

July 918,801$       140,000$                70,000$                459,400$                               v 459,400$        355,526$                        
August 886,017$       123,205$                61,603$                443,009$                               v 451,205$        711,052$                        
September -$                                       v -$                1,066,578$                     
October -$                                       v -$                1,422,104$                     
November -$                                       v -$                1,777,630$                     
December -$                                       v -$                2,133,156$                     

2021 January -$                                       v -$                2,488,682$                     
February -$                                       v -$                2,844,208$                     
March -$                                       v -$                3,199,734$                     
April -$                                       v -$                3,555,260$                     
May -$                                       v -$                3,910,786$                     
June -$                                       902,409$                  -$                4,266,312$                     

Collected Sales Tax to Public Works 131,603$              Sales Tax  Budget 2019-20 4,266,311$               
Current Avg Monthly 65,801$                

Public Works Estimated Monthly 42,662$                
YTD Sales Tax Over/Under Budget: 46,279$                YTD Sales Tax Over/Under 191,357$                  

 School Avg 
Monthly 

Collections  County Total 
 Fayette County 

Collections 
 Fayette County 

Net 
 School's Collection Total 

Monthly 
 Year-To-Date 
School Amount 

Page 125



 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

 $400,000

 $450,000

 $500,000

Sales Tax

 School's Collection Total Monthly  Average to meet Schools Sales Tax Target FY 2019-20

 Fayette County Net  Average to meet Highway / PW Sales Tax Target 2019-20

Page 126



Page 127



Page 128


	Commission Agenda -Sep 20
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	Minutes - Commission - Aug 25, 20220

	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A Resolution to Confine Solar Power Generation Facilities Generally to Within 1 Mile of a 161KV TVA Right-of-Way
	Augment Various Elements in the Regulation of Solar Power Generation Facilities and to Correct a Previous Amendment of Required Setbacks in the RPED
	Increase Setbacks from  Solar Panels to Dwellings and Minor County Roads
	Rezoning B1 to B3 - Harris

	ELECTIONS, APPOINTMENTS, & CONFIRMATIONS
	Notaries Public
	county commission rules 2021
	20-21 Standing Commitees
	Library Board
	Property Assessor Bond
	Public Works Board Bonds

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Development
	Minutes - Development -  Sept 14, 2020

	Health & Welfare
	Minutes - Health & Welfare - Sept 14, 2020

	Personnel
	Minutes - Personel - Sept 14, 2020
	Sheriff's Employee Handbook Update

	Education
	Minutes - Education - Sept 15, 2020

	Criminal Justice & Public Safety
	Minutes - Criminal Justice & Public Safety - Sept 15, 2020

	Budget
	Minutes - Budget - Sept 15, 2020
	Fleming - School Bd Office Market St Proposal 9 14 20 - Markup
	Mental Health Contract
	A2H Professional Services Contract - CJC Master Plan
	101-Sep 20 - County Clerk Reserve Request
	101-Sep 20 - Sheriff's Office Salary Line Adjustments per Pay Table
	171-Sep 20 - Ambulance Purchase



	NEW BUSINESS
	101-Sep 20 - Fire Department Operations Chief.pdf

	INFORMATION ONLY
	Sales Tax Letter
	Sales Tax
	Sales Tax Graph
	AFT Report
	Building Report





